
Y Pwyllgor Plant a Phobl Ifanc 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 9 Tachwedd 2011  

 

Amser: 
09:15 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Claire Morris 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8148 / 029 2089 8032 
PwyllgorPPI@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Gweithredu Mesur Dysgu a Sgiliau (Cymru) 2009: Sesiwn 
dystiolaeth (9:15 - 10:15) (Tudalennau 1 - 14)  
Rhwydwaith 14 – 19 Cymru 
 
John Fabes, Cydgysylltydd Rhwydwaith 14-19 Caerdydd 
Kath Durbin, Cydgysylltydd Rhwydwaith 14-19 Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
John Gambles, Cydgysylltydd Rhwydwaith 14-19 Sir Ddinbych 
Matt Morden, Cydgysylltydd Rhwydwaith 14-19 Sir Gaerfyrddin  

Egwyl (10:15-10:30) 

3. Gweithredu Mesur Dysgu a Sgiliau (Cymru) 2009: Sesiwn 
dystiolaeth (10:30 - 11:30) (Tudalennau 15 - 25)  
Cymdeithas Arweinwyr Ysgolion a Cholegau Cymru 
 
Nigel Stacey, Pennaeth Ysgol Dŵr-y-Felin, Castell-nedd 
Phil Whitcombe, Pennaeth Ysgol Bryn Hafren, Bro Morgannwg 
Dorian Williams, Pennaeth Ysgol Bro Myrddin, Caerfyrddin 
 
Cymdeithas ar gyfer yr holl Arweinwyr Ysgolion 
 
Frank Ciccotti, Pennaeth Ysgol Penfro  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Children and Young People Committee 
CYP(4)-08-11 - 09 November 2011 
 

Inquiry into Inquiry into the Implementation of the Learning 
and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 

 
Evidence from the Wales 14-19 Network Co-ordinators 

 
South East Region (Network Co-ordinator John Fabes) 

 

Evidence to the Children and Young People’s Committee

on the Implementation of the Learning & Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 

on behalf of SE Wales 

The effect of implementation on young people aged 14-19 – do they have a wider choice of academic 

and vocational courses as a result of the Measure? 

The short answer to the question above is “Yes”.  This is particularly so in the area of 14-16 vocational 

options at Level 2 where there has been a significant increase in the range available.  As the local area 

curricula have developed so has the awareness of young people about the range of vocational provisions 

available and their enthusiasm to take up the offer.  Young people with a wider range of abilities have 

been taking up vocational courses.

The post-16 offer has increased to include the vocational elements but there has been a less marked take-

up of these provisions.  However the range of academic subjects has certainly increased and enabled 

young people to try either new courses or combinations of courses that were not available through their 

home institution before the Measure. 

The Careers Wales on-line service has helped to highlight the range of choice. 

Do Welsh language pupils get the same depth and range of choice? 

There are 3 Welsh medium high schools in SE Wales and 8 altogether in the South Wales Forum.  

Through the partnerships of schools there is a good but distinctive offer within Welsh medium and the 

schools all met the requirements of the Measure.  The forum works to support vocational provisions 

across the 2 regions. 

In some cases the Welsh medium schools have sourced training providers with a capacity to deliver in 

Welsh.  In the FE sector this still remains a challenge but there is a commitment to improving capacity 

and where possible written assessments are through the medium of Welsh. 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



Overall Welsh language pupils have had a good choice of subjects both at pre and post-16.  The Bilingual 

grant from WG for supporting vocational subjects through the medium of Welsh has helped to secure the 

greater range of the vocational offer. 

Have there been any unintended consequences for other subjects as a result of the wider offer? 

The greater range of subjects across a slightly diminishing cohort size presents problems in retaining 

subjects within the offer as group sizes drop.  However the increase in partnership and collaboration has 

offset this by bringing young people together into combined groups.  This has been further exacerbated by 

the reductions in post-16 funding.  The Committee’s reference to Modern Languages highlights a general 

decline which is not due purely to the impact of wider choice.  Again increased collaboration can provide 

a way forward to ensure the retention of these subjects in the final offer.  Another off-setting factor has 

been the increased use of technology and video-conferencing to enable minority subjects to survive where 

they might  not otherwise have done so. 

The numbers of young people staying on in education and training post-16. 

There is evidence of more young people staying on in education and training over the past few years.  In 

some cases this is due to new 6
th

form programmes provided by training providers working with groups 

of schools.  The greater range of choice has also had some impact.  Some of this increase will be related 

to the state of the economy and the lack of job opportunities.  It is anticipated that the new work-based 

learning contracts will also help to push up retention rates and there is some early evidence that this is the

case.  Another factor encouraging retention is the active planning of progression routes from pre-to post 

16 especially in vocational subjects so that there are no dead ends but instead opportunities for young 

people to move on in their selected area of interest. 

Practical problems being addressed to implement the Measure. 

 Rural areas:  clearly transport costs and time are key constraints; these can limit the number of 

schools in a collaborating partnership.  However the use of technology such as video-conferencing and 

the flexible movement of staff rather than students and shared teaching between institutions have all 

helped to overcome the logistics.   

The provision of 30 learning options including 5 vocational:  with the establishment of formal 

partnerships the local area curricula have been able to meet the regulations on choice as laid down by the 

Minister.  The main issue here has been to broker and develop the local partnerships and over-coming in 

some areas engrained resistance.  There have been differential rates of progress at pre and post-16 

sometimes hindered and sometimes supported by the parallel work on the WG Transformation agenda. 

Delivering local area curricula (LAC): defining the number of these and the working 

partnerships has had to be addressed with local authority areas ranging from 1 LAC to 5 LAC. Once 

schools are working in partnership across a LAC the issues of common and block timetabling emerge and 

present a challenge especially if there is blocking both at KS4 and post-16. This in turn requires schools 

and colleges to look at the timing of the academic day and the positioning of lunchtimes to allow for 

movement of students and / or staff. Scheduling of facilities and times for video-conferencing also adds 

extra layers of complexity into the arrangements.  Much as one can understand the drive behind creating 

the LACs they are not without their complications when it comes to the practicalities of delivery. 

Delivery of learning including use of IT etc. :  (to be commented upon to the committee on the 

9
th

of November) 

Transport and Travel issues:  the movement of staff or students has always been recognised as a 

critical factor.  The issues include the costs which can be significant if taxis and hire buses are involved. 

Also there is the time taken for the travel itself.  However there can be an interesting difference in 

perspective on this.  In urban areas students might travel across a city covering say 7 or 8 miles and take 

two buses and 40 to 60 minutes for the journey each way and think that is fine.  In more rural areas where Tudalen 2



the same journey time might represent 20 to 30 miles of travel this may be considered an unreasonable 

distance and expectation.  Thus the response to the issue of travel will vary significantly from network to 

network.   In urban areas extensive use of public transport can reduce costs considerably but may not be 

an option in more rural areas.  In order for public transport to be used effectively adjustments to routes 

can be helpful but are not always easy to negotiate with the bus companies in question. 

Other issues: depending on the providers working with any given network there will be 

additional matters to be dealt with that were not necessarily in place before the Measure.  These include 

procurement processes, creating service level agreements, negotiating costs of provision (which can vary 

considerably over a region) and monitoring the quality of external provision.  The need to produce area 

prospectuses, agree entry requirements to courses and to ensure fairness when agreeing the distribution of 

provision across a partnership.  All these add to the workload and relationship building during the 

implementation phase of the Measure and although some demands will diminish over time others will 

remain. 

Is the Measure being implemented consistently across all LAs? 

It is fair to say that everyone is striving to do just this and meet the demands of the Measure and its 

associated regulations.  However each LA area is unique and at a different starting point in the 

relationships among the key stakeholders and therefore each implementation journey is different.  

Following the WG adage of national issues but local solutions so each area within a region has had to 

respond to its particular set of circumstances and generate its own set of actions with stakeholders.  So 

while some consistency can be found there will also necessarily be difference but this could be a strength. 

It is also worth noting that the Transformation plans for each LA will significantly shape how 14-19  

Learning Pathways evolves and in turn how the network responds to the implementation of the Measure.  

This introduces more potential variation and issues of governance are also likely to be distinctive. 

Vulnerable learners 

Whilst the learners capable of accessing Level 2 provisions as laid down in the Measure have generally 

performed well there has always been a debate about how well the Measure supports learners below 

Level 2.  Whilst some elements in the scoring system allow for the recognition of Level 1 provision this is 

not the same as enshrining an entitlement for this group of learners in the same way that has been done 

for Level 2.  In some networks there is a feeling that resources have been directed away from vulnerable 

learners because of the emphasis the Measure gives to Level 2 provision and that this needs to be re-

balanced.  The resource imbalance across the region in relation to ESF monies in Convergence areas only 

serves to heighten this problem. 

Learning Support 

This is a very broad question resting as it does on the actions of schools and a whole range of youth 

support services.  Currently there is not a holistic view across the whole region.  With respect to Learning 

Coaching there has been a well developed training programme running successfully for some years so 

there is at least a good supply of trained coaches across the local networks providing support for learners. 

FE Colleges 

Further information on this area can be reported to the Committee on the 9
th

November. 

John Fabes 

Cardiff 14-19 Network Co-ordinator 

For SE Wales Tudalen 3



 N
o

rt
h

 W
a
le

s
 R

e
g

io
n

 (
N

e
tw

o
rk

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

r 
Jo

h
n

 G
a
m

b
le

s
) 

N
o

rt
h

 W
a

le
s

 R
e

g
io

n
 1

4
-1

9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

T
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
0

9
 h

a
s

 h
a

d
 o

n
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

 1
4

-1
9

 
y

e
a

rs
; 

T
h
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
o

lid
a

te
 t
h

e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g
e

d
 1

4
-1

9
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
, 

w
id

e
n

e
d
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

a
rn

e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 l
e
a

rn
e

r 
v
o

ic
e

. 
 

A
t 

b
o
th

 1
4

 a
n

d
 1

6
 t

o
 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 w

it
h

 a
 g

re
a

tl
y
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 c

h
o

ic
e
 f
o

rm
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 g

e
n
e

ra
l 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 b

o
th

 a
t 
L

e
v
e

l 
2

 a
n
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
3

. 
 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
it
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
d
, 

a
t 
1

4
, 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
T

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 L
e

v
e

l 
2

, 
e
n

h
a
n

c
e

d
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 b

e
tt
e

r 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u

te
s
 

W
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s

u
re

 2
0
0

9
 h

a
s

 h
a
d

 a
n

y
 e

ff
e
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 c
h

o
o

s
in

g
 t

o
 s

ta
y

 o
n

 i
n

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 a
t 

a
g

e
 1

6
; 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 r
a
te

s
 a

t 
1
6

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 w

h
o

le
 r

e
g
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
0
8

 a
n

d
 2

0
1
0

 a
n

d
, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o
n

. 
S

o
m

e
 U

n
it
a

ry
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 s

a
w

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
3

.2
9

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 8

1
.6

7
%

 i
n
 2

0
0

9
 t
o

 8
4

.9
5

%
 i
n
 2

0
1

0
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 b

o
th

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ix
th

 F
o

rm
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
. 

   
2
0
0
5

 
2
0
0
6

 
2
0
0
7

 
2
0
0
8

 
2
0
0
9

 
2
0
1
0

 

N
o

rt
h

 W
a

le
s

 R
e

g
io

n
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

3
7
.3

 
3
6
.5

 
3
7
.4

 
3
7
.0

 
4
0
.4

 
4
1
.7

 

F
E

I 
3
8
.8

 
4
0
.1

 
4
2
.2

 
4
2
.7

 
4
1
.2

 
4
3
.3

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 
7
6
.1

 
7
6
.5

 
7
9
.7

 
7
9
.8

 
8
1
.7

 
8
4
.9

 

Tudalen 4



 S
o

u
rc

e
: 
C

a
re

e
rs

 W
a
le

s
 

W
h

e
th

e
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 1
4

-1
9

 h
a

v
e

 a
 w

id
e
r 

c
h

o
ic

e
 f

o
r 

a
c

a
d

e
m

ic
 a

n
d

 v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

a
n

d
 S

k
il
ls

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
0
9

; 
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 1

4
-1

9
 h

a
v
e

 a
 m

u
c
h

 w
id

e
r 

c
h
o

ic
e
 o

f 
b

o
th

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

n
d
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 a

t 
b
o

th
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

 i
n
 K

S
4

 a
n
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
3

 a
t 

p
o

s
t 
1

6
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n

 b
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
d

 i
n

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 o
ff
e

r 
a
n

d
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 d
a

ta
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
re

e
rs

 
W

a
le

s
 O

n
-l
in

e
. 
G

re
a

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 
a

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
, 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 

th
e

 b
re

a
d
th

 o
f 

s
u
b

je
c
ts

 b
u

t 
a

ls
o
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u
b

je
c
ts

 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fy

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

c
h

o
ic

e
. 

P
a

ri
ty

 o
f 

e
s
te

e
m

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

n
d

 v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 b

y
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 s

tu
d
e
n

ts
 e

q
u

a
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 b
o

th
 i
n

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 o

ff
e

r 
h
a

s
 b

u
rg

e
o

n
e
d

 w
h

e
re

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p
o

s
t 
1

6
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 a

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
o

n
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
o

u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

2
0

 L
e

v
e

l 
3

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
 –

 t
h

e
y
 n

o
w

 o
ff

e
r 

in
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
5
0

, 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l.
 I
n

 
o

n
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 o
f 

fo
u

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 t

w
o

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 p
o

s
t 
1
6

 o
ff

e
r 

b
e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 w

a
s
 2

2
; 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 

n
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 e
q
u

a
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
  

5
3

 L
e

v
e

l 
3

 c
o
u

rs
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 1

7
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
, 

a
n
d

 c
h
o

ic
e
 f

ro
m

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 

s
e

t.
 

A
t 

K
S

4
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
u
b

je
c
ts

 h
a

s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
c
h

o
ic

e
s
 o

f 
c
o
u

rs
e
s
 p

o
s
t 
1

6
, 
a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

b
e

tt
e

r 
u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u

te
s
. 

T
h
e

 W
e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 o
ff
e

r 
h
a

s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
, 
a

lb
e

it
 m

o
re

 s
lo

w
ly

, 
w

it
h

 B
ili

n
g
u

a
l 
a
n

d
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 

w
it
h

in
 U

A
, 

a
n

d
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
io

n
 o

n
 b

le
n

d
e

d
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 v

id
e

o
-c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
. 

  
  

  
  
 

W
h

a
t 

p
ra

c
ti

c
a

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s

e
d

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 (
W

a
le

s
) 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 2

0
0

9
. 

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 h

a
s
 m

e
a

n
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
: 

J
o

in
t 

ti
m

e
ta

b
lin

g
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o
re

 f
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 
B

lo
c
k
in

g
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

s
 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
e

p
is

o
d
e

s
 t

o
 a

t 
m

o
s
t 
2

 i
n

 a
 w

e
e

k
ly

 c
y
c
le

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

 b
y
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

 o
f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
a
n

d
 v

o
c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

, 
b

u
t 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

 b
y
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
e

c
tu

re
rs

 o
f 

g
e
n

e
ra

l 
s
u
b

je
c
ts

 i
n
 m

a
n
a

g
in

g
 2

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
2

 o
r 

m
o

re
 h

o
u

rs
. 

B
lo

c
k
in

g
 p

o
s
t 

Tudalen 5



 1
6

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 K
S

3
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 m

o
re

 s
p

lit
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
la

rg
e

r 
b

lo
c
k
s
 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ix
th

 f
o

rm
. 

 M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 s
p
e

c
ia

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

F
u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
s
u

c
h
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 h

a
s
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 b

e
e

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 1
4

-1
9

 N
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

T
h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
c
o

s
t 
fo

r 
o
n

e
 s

u
c
h

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 

fo
r 

o
n
e

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 i
s
 £

8
5

,0
0

0
 o

r 
£

2
3
0

 p
e

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 
p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 U

A
 a

b
s
o

rb
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

s
ts

. 
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
e

m
o

ra
n
d

a
 o

f 
u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 t
o
 

d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 a
tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

, 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t,
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

jo
in

t 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
jo

in
t 

m
a

rk
e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 h

e
lp

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
u

s
p

e
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

P
F

S
 b

u
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

h
a

v
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 t

h
is

 b
y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

h
a
t 

ta
k
e

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
, 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

w
e

ig
h

ti
n

g
s
, 

th
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 

o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 p

e
r 

c
o
u

rs
e
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n

 C
re

d
it
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
U

n
it
s
 (

C
E

U
) 

a
n

d
 a

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
C

E
U

 v
a

lu
e

. 
 

 S
u

s
p

e
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

P
F

S
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 
a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 t
h

e
y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 h
a

s
 

m
ili

ta
te

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
lle

g
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 w
id

e
n

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 o
n

 m
o

re
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
x
e

d
 

q
u

a
n

tu
m

 o
f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 e

x
a

c
e

rb
a

te
d

 t
h

is
 a

s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 g
ro

w
 t

h
e

ir
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 l
e
a

rn
e

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 h

a
d
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
o
u

rs
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o

f 
s
o

m
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 a

t 
s
o

m
e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 i
n

 f
a

v
o

u
r 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

ff
e

r 
a
t 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

e
tt
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 a

n
d

 a
 s

a
v
in

g
 

to
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 p
u

rs
e
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
h
a

re
d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

 T
h
e

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 v
e

ry
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

a
 g

re
a
te

r 
v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o
ff

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

is
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o
ff
e

r 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 
T

h
e

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 t
o

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 o

f 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

. 
O

n
e

 f
u

n
d
a

m
e

n
ta

l 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 t
h

e
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
(r

e
v
e

n
u

e
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

c
o

lle
g
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 a

t 
p
o

s
t 

1
6

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 o
f 
fi
n
a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rs
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 
n

o
ti
o
n

a
l 
C

E
U

 v
a

lu
e

s
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

; 
a

t 
p

re
 1

6
, 

th
e

 1
4

-1
9

 N
e

tw
o

rk
s
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

p
lif

ts
 

p
e

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 

o
f 

u
p
 t

o
 5

0
%

 t
o

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
o

s
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 
T

h
e

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
1

2
%

 i
n
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
, 
a

n
d

 7
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

, 
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 h

o
w

 m
a

n
y
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 (

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 m
a

n
y
 

Tudalen 6



 p
u

p
ils

) 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

a
n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

t 
c
o

lle
g
e

 a
n
d

 c
o
u

ld
 t

h
re

a
te

n
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 

 S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 U
A

 a
n
d

 1
4

-1
9

 N
e

tw
o

rk
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

A
g
a

in
, 

1
4

-1
9

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ta
l 
in

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h
e

 g
e

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
a
l 
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

in
g
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 h

a
s
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 b
a
s
e

d
 t
h

e
re

. 
S

u
c
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e
d

 t
h

is
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
b
a

s
e

d
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
; 

s
u

c
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n

 m
a
k
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

in
d
u

s
tr

y
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

B
le

n
d

e
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 v
id

e
o

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 b

y
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
le

s
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 m
e
a

n
in

g
fu

l 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 l
o

c
a

lly
, 

to
 w

id
e

n
 c

h
o

ic
e
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
 w

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

m
a

ll 
te

a
c
h

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 

T
h
e

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

 i
s
o

la
ti
o
n

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 m

e
d

iu
m

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

th
e

re
 i
s
 j
u

s
t 

o
n

e
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

u
r 

U
A

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

G
w

y
n

e
d

d
 a

n
d

 Y
n

y
s
 M

ô
n

) 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 s

ix
 1

4
-1

9
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 t
h
e

 c
o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

e
b

 b
a

s
e
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
M

o
o

d
le

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 r
e
g
io

n
. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 1
4

-1
9

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 h

a
s
 f

in
a

n
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 W

e
ls

h
 M

e
d

iu
m

 v
o

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
c
o
u

rs
e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 
T

h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

1
4

-1
9

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

P
a

th
w

a
y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g
e

. 
 O

th
e
r 

p
o

in
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 m
ig

h
t 

w
a
n

t 
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r:

 
 T

o
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 e
x
te

n
t,

 W
e
ls

h
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 p
u

p
ils

 d
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
p
th

 a
n

d
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

o
ic

e
 1

4
-1

6
 a

s
 b

e
s
p

o
k
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 1
4

-1
9

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a
y
s
 g

ra
n

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 m

o
re

 l
im

it
e

d
 p

o
s
t-

1
6

 a
s
 L

e
v
e

l 
3

 c
o
u

rs
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 o
f 
W

e
ls

h
 a

s
 v

ia
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
 s

iz
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 l
e
a

rn
e

rs
 –

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 1
4

-1
9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
2

 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 p

re
 1

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 c
o
n

s
e

q
u
e

n
c
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
e

s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
L
e

v
e

l 
1

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 e

v
e

n
 t
h

o
s
e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
m

a
n

d
in

g
 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 f
o

r 
s
o
m

e
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 1

4
-1

9
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 l
e
a

rn
e

rs
 i
n
 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 Y

s
g
o

l 
y
 G

o
g
a

rt
h
 l
e
a

rn
e

rs
 i
n
 C

o
n

w
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
a

lo
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
C

o
le

g
 L

la
n

d
ri
llo

, 
Y

s
g
o

l 
T

ir
 M

o
rf

a
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 i
n

 D
e

n
b

ig
h

s
h

ir
e

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 

ta
s
te

r 
c
o
u

rs
e
s
 a

t 
C

o
le

g
 L

la
n

d
ri
llo

 a
n

d
 D

e
e

s
id

e
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
a
n

d
 S

t 
C

h
ri
s
to

p
h
e

r’
s
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
v
o

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
L
e

v
e

l 
1

 a
n

d
 E

n
tr

y
 L

e
v
e

l 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 w

it
h

 Y
a

le
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
D

e
e

s
id

e
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 l
e
a

rn
e

rs
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 c

o
lle

g
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
 f

u
ll-

ti
m

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
lle

g
e

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 

Tudalen 7



 m
a

jo
r 

s
te

p
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 f

o
r 

th
e

s
e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

1
4

-1
9

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 n
o

t 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
, 
b

u
t 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h

 A
L

N
 o

r 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 d
a
n

g
e

r 
o
f 

b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 N

E
E

T
. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 m

a
tc

h
 f
o

r 
E

S
F

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n

 C
o
n

v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 A
re

a
s
, 
s
u

c
h
 a

s
 L

lw
y
d

d
o

’n
 L

le
o

l 
a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

s
ia

l,
 a

n
d

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

im
p

a
c
t 
in

 r
e

-e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
 s

k
ill

s
. 

W
it
h

o
u

t 
g
ra

n
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
th

e
s
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
o

ti
v
a

te
d
 

to
 l
e

a
rn

. 
 T

h
e

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
d

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 S
k
ils

 M
e

a
s
u

re
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 e

g
 d

e
p

u
ti
e
s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
/ 
ti
m

e
ta

b
li
n

g
 

m
o

d
e

lli
n
g
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
; 

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
h
e

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 c

o
u

rs
e
; 

g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

fo
r 

te
a

c
h

e
rs

, 
le

c
tu

re
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

e
a

c
h
e

rs
 o

u
t 

o
f 

is
o
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p
e

te
n

c
ie

s
 i
n
 h

e
lp

in
g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

. 
 A

ll 
o
f 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 W
a
le

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 1

4
-1

9
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 g

ra
n

ts
 t

o
 f
u

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n
g
 t

h
o

s
e

 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 i
n

 d
a

n
g
e

r 
o
f 

b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 N

E
E

T
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 u
p

o
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 o

ff
e

r 
o
f 

L
e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 M

e
a

s
u

re
. 

   
  

2
0
1
0

 
  

2
0
0
9

 
  

2
0
0
8

 
  

2
0
0
7

 
  

2
0
0
6

 
  

2
0
0
5

 

  
N

E
E

T
 

c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
E

E
T

 
c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
E

E
T

 
c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
E

E
T

 
c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
E

E
T

 
c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
E

E
T

 
c
o

h
o

rt
 

N
O

R
T

H
 W

A
L

E
S

  
3
0
7

 
8
0
1
1

 
3
6
3

 
8
1
5
6

 
6
1
1

 
8
6
7
7

 
4
9
6

 
8
7
2
6

 
5
2
3

 
8
4
5
5

 
4
8
5

 
8
4
7
1

 

%
 k

n
o

w
n

 N
E

E
T

 
3

.8
3

%
 

  
4

.4
5

%
 

  
7

.0
4

%
 

  
5

.6
8

%
 

  
6

.1
9

%
 

  
5

.7
3

%
 

  

 If
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 l
if
e

ti
m

e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 s

o
c
ie

ty
 o

f 
a

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 N

E
E

T
 a

t 
1

6
 i
s
 £

5
6

,3
0

0
* 

p
e

r 
p
e

rs
o

n
, 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
lif

e
ti
m

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 
N

E
E

T
 c

o
h
o

rt
 h

a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 f

ro
m

 £
2

7
,3

0
5
,5

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

 t
o
 £

1
7

,2
8

4
,1

0
0
 i
n
 2

0
1
0

; 
a

 f
a

ll 
o
f 

£
1

0
,0

2
1
,4

0
0
. 

T
h

is
 ‘
s
a
v
in

g
’ 
to

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 p

u
rs

e
 i
s
 

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 o
v
e

r 
tw

ic
e
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
  

b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

a
le

s
 R

e
g
io

n
 .

 
  (

 *
S

o
u

rc
e
: 

C
o
le

s
, 
B

. 
e

t 
a

l.
 (

2
0
1

0
) 

E
s
ti
m

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
if
e

-t
im

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

N
E

E
T

: 
 1

6
-1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o
ld

s
 n

o
t 

in
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
T

ra
in

in
g
 

R
e
s
e

a
rc

h
 U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

Y
o

rk
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
) 

 

Tudalen 8



 
 

*The South West and Mid Wales Consortium Region comprises of the 14-19 Network co-ordinators for the local authority  
areas of  Powys, Neath Port Talbot, Swansea, Ceredigion, Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire. 

South West and Mid Wales Region (Network Co-ordinator Matt 
Morden) 

 
Response from the South West & Mid Wales Consortium* 

Regional Co-ordinators Group (swamwac) 

The Children and Young People Committee are undertaking an inquiry into the implementation 
of the Learning and Skills Measure 2009.  The terms of reference for this inquiry are: 

1) The effect that the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 has had 
on young people aged 14-19 years; 

2) Whether the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 has had any 
effect on the numbers of young people choosing to stay on in education or training after the end 
of compulsory education at age 16; 

3) Whether young people aged 14-19 have a wider choice for academic and vocational courses as 
a result of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009; and          

4) What practical problems have been addressed in order to implement the Learning and 
Skills (Wales) Measure 2009.  

Response 1.   
 
Across the 6 Networks in the swamwac region, the Learning and Skills measure has delivered 
positive outcomes for young people aged 14-19 years by: 
 

· Increasing the range of courses available in academic and vocational subject areas delivered 
in both Welsh and English; 

· Ensuring that individuals have more equal access to courses across the region; 

· Developing a curriculum that better meets the needs of local learners; 

· Enabling access to learning coaching and a wide range of additional personal support to 
overcome barriers to success in education and training; 

· Improved “parity of esteem” between vocational and academic courses;  

· Increased learner satisfaction and motivation due to opportunities to follow a more diverse 
curriculum that better reflects the interests of learners; 

· Significantly reducing the number of young people who become NEET at 16.  
 
Collaborative working by schools, further education colleges and training providers has enabled 
young people to: 
 

· Study in other learning settings away from their home institution for part of their timetable; 

· Learn in larger groups with young people from other schools and colleges; 

· Undertake courses in specialist subject areas (e.g. fashion) that would not be available or 
viable in individual institutions. 

 
Additionally, the Development of 14-19 Learning Pathways and the Learning and Skills Measure 
has enabled the rebuilding of the trust between Post-16 learning providers that was eroded 
following the incorporation of Further Education Colleges in 1993. The collaborative provision 
overseen by the 14-19 Networks has been instrumental in embedding genuine partnership working 
for young people by schools, further education colleges, training providers, the careers company 
and the local education authorities. This work has required many hours of brokerage and 
facilitation by the 14-19 Network co-ordinators and this has resulted in more effective 

Tudalen 9



 
 

*The South West and Mid Wales Consortium Region comprises of the 14-19 Network co-ordinators for the local authority  
areas of  Powys, Neath Port Talbot, Swansea, Ceredigion, Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire. 

collaborative planning and a more integrated approach to the delivery of the Extending 
Entitlement, youth support services and CYPP agendas across the region.  
Shared regional working has been supported via the swamwac 14-19 Network co-ordinators group, 
with a particular emphasis on Welsh Medium provision (via Welsh Medium Fforwrm funding) and 
learning coach development. 

 
Response 2.  
 
All 6 swamwac14-19 Networks can evidence significant increases in the number of young people 
staying on in Post 16 education and reductions in the number of young people designated as NEET 
at 16 (see appendix 1).  The decrease in the number of young people aged 16-18 becoming NEET 
have enabled many more young people to progress to further education, training and work. This 
represents a very significant saving to the public purse (see appendix 2). 
 
There have been positive outcomes for other relevant indicators, including reductions in the 
number of young people leaving education without recognised qualifications, Level 1 and Level 2 
thresholds and the average wider points score. 
 
Response 3.  
 
Learners across south west and mid Wales have a wider choice of academic and vocational 
courses as a result of the Learning and Skills Measure. Issues relating to the parity of esteem 
between traditional academic courses and vocational routes are being addressed through the 
development of 14-19 Learning Pathways and the opportunity to combine academic and 
vocational courses. Learners have much improved access to information about courses available 
to them across their local curriculum area.   
 
All Networks can evidence a significant increase in the numbers of courses offered to learners 
and the number of vocational options both pre and post 16, as required by the Measure. 
 
Response 4. 
 
There are a range of practical issues that Networks have had to address in order to realise the 
benefits of 14-19 Learning Pathways for young people in the region. These issues include: 
 

· Developing collaboration via WG 14-19 Network funding while providers work within a Post 16 
funding system that continues to encourage competition between schools, FE and training 
providers; 

· Development of shared timetabling between schools, further education colleges, training 
providers and across Networks; 

· Transporting learners to their chosen provision is costly, time-consuming, logistically 
challenging and can be unpopular with young people in both rural and urban settings; 

· The absence of a national and common e-learning portal that provides access to a range of 
technologies, tools and resources for young people and practitioners; 

     (see example at  http://www.ltscotland.org.uk/usingglowandict//roleofictinlearning.asp ); 

· Enabling the release of teaching and lecturing staff to take part in training (such as learning 
coach) and other staff development; 

· The limited nature of labour market information at a local authority level on which decisions 
about course provision linked to employer need can be made 

· The staff time required to build trust and effective partnership working between providers 
and increasingly, between Networks on a regional basis; 

· Resourcing a small team to facilitate Network collaboration, meet the required standards and 
LA, WG and Wales Audit Office requirements.  

Tudalen 10



  

*T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 a
n
d
 M

id
 W

a
le

s 
C
o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 R

e
g
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s 

o
f 

th
e
 1

4
-1

9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
  

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

 P
o
w

y
s,

 N
e
a
th

 P
o
rt

 T
a
lb

o
t,

 S
w

a
n
se

a
, 

C
e
re

d
ig

io
n
, 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
sh

ir
e
 a

n
d
 C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e
n
sh

ir
e

. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 

  
D

e
st

in
a
ti

o
n
s 

o
f 

Y
r 

1
1
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
L
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
0
 b

y
 1

4
-1

9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 a
re

a
, 

sw
a
m

w
a
c
 r

e
g
io

n
 a

n
d
 W

a
le

s 
  

C
o
n
ti

n
u
in

g
 i
n
 F

u
ll
 

T
im

e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

 

C
o
n
ti

n
u
in

g
 

in
 P

a
rt

 T
im

e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
  

W
o
rk

 B
a
se

d
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 -

 n
o
n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 

st
a
tu

s 

W
o
rk

 B
a
se

d
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 -

 
E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

st
a
tu

s 
E
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 -

 
O

th
e
r 

K
n
o
w

n
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

in
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
, 

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

N
o
 r

e
sp

o
n
se

 
to

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

L
e
ft

 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 &
 R

e
g
io

n
 (

%
) 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
o
w

y
s 

 
7
8
.3

 
8
5
.4

 
- 

0
.1

 
2
.0

 
1
.9

 
2
.0

 
0
.5

 
5
.6

 
2
.5

 
4
.8

 
2
.9

 
1
.8

 
1
.8

 
5
.4

 
4
.8

 

C
e
re

d
ig

io
n
  

 
7
9
.0

 
8
6
.2

 
- 

0
.2

 
5
.9

 
5
.4

 
2
.8

 
0
.6

 
5
.5

 
3
.3

 
3
.6

 
2
.3

 
0
 

0
.5

 
3
.1

 
1
.5

 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
sh

ir
e
  

 
7
9
.3

 
8
0
.5

 
- 

0
.3

 
6
.0

 
6
.5

 
1
.7

 
1
.1

 
4
.3

 
3
.3

 
6
.6

 
4
.8

 
0
.4

 
0
.4

 
1
.6

 
3
.1

 

C
a
rm

a
rt

h
e
n
sh

ir
e
  

 
7
9
.8

 
8
7
.3

 
- 

0
.0

 
7
.0

 
5
.0

 
1
.8

 
1
.5

 
3
.7

 
1
.6

 
5
.7

 
2
.9

 
0
.1

 
0
.3

 
1
.8

 
1
.3

 

S
w

a
n
se

a
  

7
2
.5

 
8
3
.4

 
- 

0
.0

 
9
.7

 
8
.2

 
1
.6

 
1
.1

 
3
.9

 
1
.8

 
8
.5

 
4
.2

 
2
.1

 
0
 

1
.4

 
1
.2

 

N
e
a
th

 P
o
rt

 T
a
lb

o
t 

  
7
3
.0

 
8
0
.4

 
- 

0
.0

 
9
.9

 
8
.5

 
1
.8

 
0
.6

 
3
.2

 
1
.5

 
8
.1

 
6
.6

 
3
.2

 
1
.4

 
1
.2

 
0
.9

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

sw
a
m

w
a
c
 R

e
g
io

n
  

7
7
.0

 
8
3
.9

 
- 

0
.1

 
6
.8

 
5
.9

 
2
.0

 
0
.9

 
4
.4

 
2
.3

 
6
.2

 
3
.6

 
1
.3

 
0
.7

 
2
.4

 
2
.1

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

W
a
le

s 
7
5
.6

 
8
2
.8

 
- 

0
.2

 
6
.6

 
5
.8

 
2
.0

 
1
.0

 
5
.1

 
1
.9

 
6
.8

 
5
.4

 
1
.8

 
1
.2

 
2
.1

 
1
.7

 

               A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

Tudalen 11



  

*T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 a
n
d
 M

id
 W

a
le

s 
C
o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 R

e
g
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s 

o
f 

th
e
 1

4
-1

9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
  

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

 P
o
w

y
s,

 N
e
a
th

 P
o
rt

 T
a
lb

o
t,

 S
w

a
n
se

a
, 

C
e
re

d
ig

io
n
, 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
sh

ir
e
 a

n
d
 C

a
rm

a
rt

h
e
n
sh

ir
e

. 

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

Y
e
a
r 

1
1
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 k
n
o
w

n
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a
, 

sw
a
m

w
a
c
 r

e
g
io

n
 

a
n
d
 A

ll
 W

a
le

s*
  

  
2
0
0
5
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
0
 

1
4
-1

9
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 a
re

a
 

%
a
g
e
 o

f 
Y
r 

1
1
 

c
o
h
o
rt

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
E
st

im
a
te

d
 l
if

e
ti

m
e
 

c
o
st

 t
o
 s

o
c
ie

ty
**

 
%
a
g
e
 o

f 
Y
r 

1
1
 

c
o
h
o
rt

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
E
st

im
a
te

d
 l
if

e
ti

m
e
 

c
o
st

 t
o
 s

o
c
ie

ty
* 

P
o
w

y
s 

 
4
.8

 
8
1
 

£
4
, 

5
6
0
,3

0
0
 

2
.9

 
4
9
 

£
2
,7

5
8
,7

0
0
 

C
e
re

d
ig

io
n
 

3
.6

 
3
2
 

£
1
,8

0
1
,6

0
0
 

2
.3

 
2
0
 

£
1
,1

2
6
,0

0
0
 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
sh

ir
e
 

6
.6

 
9
8
 

£
5
,5

1
7
4
0
0
 

4
.8

 
7
0
 

£
3
,9

4
1
0
0
0
 

C
a
rm

a
rt

h
e
n
sh

ir
e
  

5
.7

 
1
2
5
 

£
7
,0

3
7
,5

0
0
 

2
.9

 
6
4
 

£
3
,6

0
3
,2

0
0
 

S
w

a
n
se

a
  

8
.5

 
2
4
8
 

£
1
3
,9

6
2
,4

0
0
 

4
.2

 
1
1
0
 

£
6
,1

9
3
,0

0
0
 

N
e
a
th

 P
o
rt

 T
a
lb

o
t 

 
8
.1

 
1
4
5
 

£
8
,1

6
3
,5

0
0
 

6
.6

 
1
1
4
 

£
6
,4

1
8
,2

0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

sw
a
m

w
a
c
 R

e
g
io

n
  

6
.2

 
7
2
9
 

£
4
1
,0

4
2
,7

0
0
 

4
.0

 
4
2
7
 

£
2
4
,0

4
0
,1

0
0

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ll

 W
a
le

s 
 

6
.8

 
2
6
3
4
 

£
1
4
8
,2

9
4
,2

0
0

 
5
.4

 
1
9
6
7
 

£
1
1
0
,7

4
2
,1

0
0

 

  * 
C

a
re

e
rs

 W
a
le

s 
W

e
st

 D
e
st

in
a
ti

o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
s 

2
0
0
5
 &

 2
0
1
0
 

 h
tt

p
:/

/
w

w
w

.c
a
re

e
rs

w
a
le

s.
c
o
m

/
p
ro

f/
u
p
lo

a
d
/
p
d
f/

D
e
st

in
a
ti

o
n
s_

2
0
1
0
_
E
n
g
_
v
2
.p

d
f 

  **
B
a
se

d
 o

n
 r

e
se

a
rc

h
 b

y
 t

h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
Y
o
rk

 (
2
0
1
0
) 

id
e
n
ti

fy
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
if

e
ti

m
e
 c

o
st

 t
o
 s

o
c
ie

ty
 o

f 
a
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 N

E
E
T
 a

t 
1
6
 a

s 
£
5
6
,3

0
0
 p

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
. 

 
S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
le

s,
 B

. 
e
t 

a
l.

 (
2
0
1
0
) 

E
st

im
a
ti

n
g
 t

h
e
 l
if

e
-t

im
e
 c

o
st

 o
f 

N
E
E
T
: 

 1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s 
n
o
t 

in
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 R

e
se

a
rc

h
 U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it

 
C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
. 

Y
o
rk

 U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

 h
tt

p
:/

/
w

w
w

.y
o
rk

.a
c
.u

k
/
m

e
d
ia

/
sp

sw
/
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

/
re

se
a
rc

h
-a

n
d
-p

u
b
li
c
a
ti

o
n
s/

N
E
E
T
_
E
x
e
c
u
ti

v
e
_
S
u
m

m
a
ry

_
J
u
ly

_
2
0
1
0
_
Y
o
rk

.p
d
f 

     Tudalen 12



South Central Region (Network Co-ordinator Kath Durbin) 
 
Question 1 
 
The effect that the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 has had 
on young people aged 14-19 years; 
 
1.1  The Learning & Skills Measure has had a positive effect on young people in that it has: 

 
i). extended choice for learners and increased the number of options and learning pathways 

available to them across a range of domain areas 
ii). improved equality of access to learning opportunities within and across a local 

curriculum/area 
iii). encouraged flexibility within curriculum patterns which allow learners to benefit from a 

tailored learning provision 
iv). supported learners through increased access to learning coaches and the benefits of 

learning coach functions 
v). improved the match between the learning offer and the individual needs of learners 

 
1.2  The actions put in place by Learning  Partnerships in response to the Learning & Skills 
 Measure have enabled learners to: 
 

i). study in another location; this has brought with it social and cultural benefits as well as 
learning gains 

ii). learn with students from other schools and local colleges (pre and post 16) 
iii). experience vocational and work based learning opportunities 

 
1.3  It has also helped Networks to : 
 

i). frame their response to the Transformation Agenda (Post 16)  
ii). articulate a framework and  statement of entitlement for learners across areas of study 

and levels of qualifications and courses 
iii). been a catalyst for increasing collaboration across institutions and sectors 
iv). Increasing levels of trust and genuine partnership working in a locality and/or region. 

 
Question 2 
 
Whether the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 has had any 
effect on the numbers of young people choosing to stay on in education or training after the 
end of compulsory education at age 16; 
 
Local Networks have reported an increase in the number of young people staying on in Post 16 
education and training and overall a reduction in the number of young people designated as NEET 
at 16.  Other indicators such as the number of young people leaving education with no qualifications 
has also reduced. 
 
The Measure has been a catalyst for developing additional specialist provision Post 16 e.g. 
Bridgend’s  Studio 34 Skills Centre which provides a combination of formal & non formal learning 
opportunities together with dedicated learning coach support.  Outcomes from this project have 
been very positive. 
 

Tudalen 13



Question 3 
 
Whether young people aged 14-19 have a wider choice for academic and vocational courses 
as a result of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009;           
 
Yes, learners do have a wider choice of academic and vocational courses and they also have 
improved access to information about  courses across a local curriculum area.  This wider choice 
and the opportunity to mix academic and vocational courses as part of a Learning Pathway is 
helping to address issues relating to the parity of esteem between traditional academic courses and 
vocational routes.  
 
Since the introduction of the Measure, Networks have witnessed a significant increase in the 
numbers of courses offered to learners at and the number of vocational options pre and post 16. 
 
The Learning & Skills Measure has helped us to identify gaps in provision e.g. in Bridgend we 
identified a need to develop more Entry & L1 courses to meet the needs of vulnerable learners who 
were potential NEETs. 
 
Question 4 

What practical problems have been addressed in order to implement the Learning 
and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009? 

The logistics are a challenge and include: 
 

i). Timing-related issues at the start of a new school year present a challenge for colleagues 
with responsibility for coordinating collaborative arrangements.  There is a very real need 
to balance the time allocated for learners to make well informed choices between the time 
when they receive their examination results and the time when courses begin.  

ii). Tracking learners and their progress and outcomes. 
iii). Taster courses and improving induction arrangements for all learners. 
iv). Timetabling challenges and the impact of post 16 timetabling arrangements on learning in 

key stages 3 & 4.  
v). Funding a cost effective management team to support developments and ensure quality 

coordination and development on an ongoing cyclical basis. 
vi). Transport and managing travel to learn arrangements are complex and require joint 

working across Local Authority departments. 

Tudalen 14



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 1 7/25/2012 

Children and Young People Committee 

CYP(4)-08-11 Paper 2 
 

Inquiry into the Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) 
Measure 2009 
 
Evidence from the Association of School and College Leaders [ASCL Cymru]  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gareth Jones 
Secretary ASCL Cymru 

Trem-y-Cwm 
Chepstow 
Kilgwrrwg 
NP16 6DB 

07738803206 

gareth.jones@ascl.org.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction: 

1. The membership of ASCL Cymru comprises the majority of the leadership 

teams of the secondary schools of Wales. 

2. We welcome the opportunity to submit evidence to the Children and Young 

People Committee on the implementation of the Learning Skills Measure 

2009. 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 15



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 2 7/25/2012 

3. Our response to the questions posed by the Committee is based upon a 

survey of members and their representatives in each of the 22 Local 

Authorities in Wales .Sections in italics are direct quotes from members. 

 

The effect that the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 

2009 has had on young people aged 14-19 years; 

4.    Member responses indicate that the Measure has: 

a. improved the vocational provision for a minority of students but 
possibly at a price for other students; 
 

b. it has had some effect in broadening the range of courses being 
offered, although in some cases the extension of provision would have 
arisen naturally out of collaboration anyway. 

 
c. reduced choice for students wanting to study solely at their own centre 

of choice by forcing courses with small numbers, even where other 
courses in that institution are well subscribed and would by average 
result in reasonable class sizes, to merge with courses in other 
centres, meaning students have to leave and go elsewhere or travel 
when they do not necessarily want that. 

 
d. had a major impact on the timetabling of all subjects and all year 

groups across the 14-19 setting (and the 11-14), which means, at 
times,other subjects have to be taught in 2-3 hour blocks even when 
that is not beneficial for the subject. 

 
e. reduced a school's flexibility to amend option blocks from year to year 

to suit a cohort's particular needs/choices which actually reduces the 
choice available rather than improving it. 

 
f. given students access to a range of courses they don't actually want to 

take, which can be seen from how many of those courses have poor 
numbers or don't run. 

    

Whether the implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009 

has had any effect on the numbers of young people choosing to stay on in 

education or training after the end of compulsory education at age 16; 

5. There has been an increase in the proportion of young people staying on in 

full time education – whether at school or at college. 

6. Whether that can be attributed to the Learning Skills Measure or the impact of 

the economic downturn and rising youth unemployment is a moot point. 

Tudalen 16



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 3 7/25/2012 

7. There may have been some effect in access to college courses post-16, 

particularly where the Measure and collaboration have resulted in a student 

accessing a college course in KS4 that they wouldn't otherwise have had 

access to. 

    

 Whether young people aged 14-19 have a wider choice for academic and 

vocational courses as a result of the Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 

2009;     

8. In general terms, there is a wider choice of academic and vocational 

programmes offered to the students because the Measure specifies that 

the local curriculum plan must contain a minimum of 30 choices across the 

learning domains. The requirements of the Measure, in this respect, has 

already been fulfilled in the majority of schools and colleges before the 

specified target date of 2012. 

9. The wider choice, based upon a local curriculum plan and consortia 

arrangements between schools and/or colleges, has been to the benefit of 

a minority of students, particularly those whose learning pathway does not 

include transfer to HE in the future. 

10. The wider choice has come at a price however: 

Yes there is wider choice but not necessarily a wider choice in courses 
they want to study, nor at the place they want to study in.  
There is a wider choice of vocational courses in all settings which is 
good but there are actually very few vocational courses that students 
want to mix with A levels so insisting that 6th forms offer access to 5 is 
counterproductive.  
It is totally counterproductive to insist that institutions offer access to 30 
in total at L3. If students weren't happy with the selection offered they 
would go elsewhere anyway and the institution concerned would have 
to respond to that or no longer be viable.  
If the students attending an institution are happy with a selection of eg. 
25 courses then there is no reason why the institution should be forced 
to offer courses it knows its students do not want to take.  
If students from that institution generally aim for higher education and 
have seen the report on courses valued by the Russell Group 
universities, they are aware that it is not always in their interests to 
take courses that these universities view as less significant. To have a 
quota of 30 for the offer without allowing an institution to justify why it is 
better for them to offer greater or fewer, assuming they can evidence 
what their students want, actually disadvantages students in that 
institution by reducing flexibility in timetabling. 

     

Tudalen 17



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 4 7/25/2012 

What practical problems have been addressed in order to implement the 

Learning and Skills (Wales) Measure 2009.     

 

11. The practical problems around consortia working have involved: 

a. Establishing the local curriculum plan, in accordance with the criteria 

specified in the Measure and indicated in subsequent Guidance. 

b. Negotiating the delivery of the plan; 

i. Common timetabling plans across the consortia; 

ii. Agreeing protocols for matters such as: 

1. The assessment, recording and reporting on student 

progress; 

2. Student dress codes  when off site from their home 

institution; 

3. Investigating and resolving complaints from students 

and/or parents; 

4. Selection of specific qualification and the entry of 

students for examinations. 

5. Performance Management and CPD of staff whether 

teachers,FE Lecturers or Support staff; 

6. The organisation of transport for students travelling to 

other institutions in the context of the Learner Travel 

Measure; 

7. Communication of data and relevant information within 

the context of the Data Protection regulations.  

This continues to be an area of difficulty between 
institutions, often because the implementation in terms of 
administration and manager time has not been 
adequately financed. This is a particular problem where 
institutions in different Local Authorities are involved in 
consortia working. 

 
8. Audit arrangements for the proper use of allocated 

network funds. 

iii. Addressing Child Protection requirements – in particular: 

1. CRB checks for staff in other institutions 

Tudalen 18



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 5 7/25/2012 

2. Ensuring appropriate supervision for KS4 students at FE 

colleges 

iv. Managing the allocation of funding via the Learning Network 

v. The specific issues for welsh medium schools and/or rural 

schools. 

c. The practical problems for institutional management have included: 

i. Managing the implications of a common timetable across 

institutions for: 

1. Staffing levels; 

2. Staff deployment and timetable plans 

3. The implications for curriculum delivery of KS3 courses. 

ii. Preparing, publishing and updating the Learning Pathway 

document for each student; 

iii. Managing the process of determining student entitlement and 

any subsequent appeals or complaints.  

iv. Managing access to a Learning Coach for individual students. 

 

Conclusion. 

12. On the whole, the barriers to progress indicated in the previous section have 

been overcome in one way or another so that the requirements of the 

Measure in terms of widening choice and establishing a learner entitlement 

have been met in the vast majority of schools ahead of the final 

implementation date of September 2012. 

13. Whether it has been beneficial for students is a matter for debate- the gain for 

some students, with regard to vocational pathways may have been at the 

expense of other students: 

For a very small percentage of the cohort, it has increased their choice. 
For the majority of students in this institution, it has had an adverse 
effect. The arbitary figures of 5 vocational and an overall offer of 30 
subjects are the main issues. To require 14-19 settings to justify that 
they provide for their students' preferences and allow for individual 
variation would be much more appropriate now.  

 

14. Funding remains a significant concern. Member comments include: 

a. Underpinning the planning of the Measure was an assumption that 
consortia working reduces costs and that the savings would fund any 

Tudalen 19



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 6 7/25/2012 

consequential cost increases. In practice, the reduction in the 
frequency of uneconomic classes has generated cost reduction in 
terms of staffing levels but the assumption that this releases funds is 
misplaced on the whole. A full time teacher may no longer be required 
to deliver an A level course, but the remaining 90% of his/her timetable 
still has to be delivered at KS3 and 4. In subject areas where the 
supply of qualified staff is limited ( e.g  Maths, Physics) the scope for 
reducing staffing levels and releasing funds is restricted. Thus schools 
have had to readjust their staff deployment plans to maintain full time 
posts in specific subject areas. 

 
b. Consortia working involves either students or staff travelling to other 

institutions which has brought additional costs. These have been 
funded via grants from the Learning Networks that have overseen the 
implementation of the Measure. 

 
c. Implementation of the Measure has brought additional costs which 

have been borne by the delegated school budgets and thus diverting 
resources from other priorities within the school. These have included: 

i. The considerable amount of time spent by school leaders in 
planning the local curriculum plan annually and in managing the 
negotiation of compromises on the delivery of the plan.  

ii. Fulfilling the duty of care for student safety which rests upon 
school leaders. Concerns with regard to this and to the 
maintenance of good order has led some schools to provide 
staff to accompany students undertaking a learning programme 
in another school or college.  

 
d. There is no security of funding for the support of the administration 

arrangements for the consortia working which is essential for the 
delivery of the local curriculum plan. Funding of Learning Networks by 
specific grant is to be maintained to 2014 but at reducing amounts. 
After that- are we to see replay of the fate of TVEI in early 1990’s??  

 

15.   The considerable time invested by school leaders, in ensuring that the 

Measure is implemented, has been absorbed by schools thus far.  Whether 

this can be maintained is a matter for concern given that the priority for the 

Welsh Government seems to have moved to narrowing the gap between 

Wales and other countries with regard to PISA style assessments and 

attainment levels at ages 16 and 18. 

With the imminent return to a form of league tables, Governors are 

understandably anxious and, in some cases, are pressurising school leaders 

with regard to any activity which takes school leaders out of school. 

16.  Government priorities within the Transformation Agenda, involving the 

removal of surplus places, and the creation of regional consortia for School 

Tudalen 20



 

 

 

 

Gareth Jones Page 7 7/25/2012 

Improvement, is disrupting existing working patterns and communication 

channels which is not helpful to the fulfilment of the role Local Authorities 

have with regard to coordinating the consortia planning that is integral to 

delivery of the Learning Skills Measure. 

17. To ensure that progress in developing a relevant and appropriate curriculum 

experience for all students across the ability and age ranges we recommend 

consideration of: 

a. The removal from the legislation of the requirement to have a minimum 

of 30 course choices so as to return scope for flexibility in the devising 

local curricula plans which reflect the labour market trends; 

b. A recognition that student choice should include not just course, but 

also location of study.  This is a significant consideration for students in 

choosing their courses of study. 

c. The necessity of formal agreements between institutions involved in a 

consortia to ensure stability and continuity of provision for the future. 

There is a danger that the history of TVEI in the early 1990’s will be 

repeated with Learning Pathways in the coming years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 21



NAHT Cymru 

Y Gymdeithas ar gyfer holl arweinwyr ysgol 

The Association for all School Leaders 

Cyfarwyddydd / Director: Anna Brychan 

NAHT Cymru, 9 Rhodfa Columbus Walk, Maes Brigantîn / 

 Brigantine Place, Caerdydd / Cardiff CF10 4BY 

T: 029 2048 4546   E: annab@naht.org.uk   W: www.naht.org.uk 

 

1 

Children and Young People Committee 

CYP(4)-08-11 Paper 3 
 

Inquiry into the Implementation of the Learning and Skills (Wales) 

Measure 2009 

 

Evidence from the Association for all School Leaders (NAHT) Cymru 

 

About NAHT 

NAHT Cymru has 1300 members. Membership is made up of head teachers, 
deputies and assistant heads in primary, secondary and special schools in 
Wales. 
 
Across Wales, England and Northern Ireland, NAHT represents more than 
28,000 school leaders, including virtually every special school head, 85% of all 
primary school heads, and over 40% of all secondary school heads in Wales, 
England and Northern Ireland. 
 
It is the largest organisation of its kind in Europe 

 
 

NAHT Cymru response to:  The Children and Young People Committee 
inquiry into the implementation of the Learning and Skills Measure 2009.   
 
Breadth of offer – it is undoubtedly the case that students now have access to 
a wider range of courses.  However, this comes at the expense of travel – both 
pupils’ time commitment and the cost to authorities.  There is some evidence 
that some students shape their choices to avoid extended travel if possible. 
 

Travel implications - At KS4, the scope for travel is limited.  Larger schools 

are often able to meet the demands of the measure without engaging in 

partnership arrangements, so the pupils in these schools suffer less disruption 

to their learning programmes.  Where there are extensive collaborative 

arrangements, these can have a distorting effect on the remainder of the 

curriculum and on the curriculum timings for those who are not involved in the 

collaboration.   

 

Tudalen 22



NAHT Cymru 

Y Gymdeithas ar gyfer holl arweinwyr ysgol 

The Association for all School Leaders 

Cyfarwyddydd / Director: Anna Brychan 

NAHT Cymru, 9 Rhodfa Columbus Walk, Maes Brigantîn / 

 Brigantine Place, Caerdydd / Cardiff CF10 4BY 

T: 029 2048 4546   E: annab@naht.org.uk   W: www.naht.org.uk 

 

2 

For example, in order to provide for vocational courses, many schools have set 

up day release systems.  This compacts the remainder of the curriculum into 

fewer teaching days.  It also means that pupils who are not taking the 

vocational subject will study option subjects which are set against the 

vocational subject for the whole day – it is not uncommon to see  KS4 timetable 

days that run “History, Chemistry, History, Chemistry, History” one week and 

“Chemistry, History, Chemistry, History, Chemistry” the next.   This is not 

entirely helpful. 

 

In KS5, however, many staff and students welcome the longer teaching blocks 

that come as a consequence of the need to travel.  When dealing with advanced 

work, extended sessions can allow deeper treatment and better progress. 

 

A further consequence of this type of provision is that  if a child or a member of 

staff is absent, or there is a school closure day for training, a significant 

proportion of the teaching in that subject is lost. 

 

In KS5, there is also greater breadth of offer and the fact that students have 

more time flexibility is helpful in making the system work.  However, in rural 

areas where travel times are greater, there is more of a tendency for students to 

shape their options around the offer in their home institutions. 

 

Staying in education – We have no evidence that the broader curriculum offer 

has encouraged more students to return to education post-16.  In many ways, 

nothing has significantly altered for students, who already had the option of 

transferring to a college or training provider to take on a vocational course at 

post-16.  Few students mix and match vocational and academic courses, and 

where they do, it is normally a vocational course with a very academic flavour – 

like business studies.   

 

Where students have taken vocational courses at level 2 in KS4, there is rarely 

the chance to progress straight to level 3 at a college or training provider. 

 

There is strong anecdotal evidence that KS4 learners are motivated by the 

vocational subjects on offer, and remain more fully engaged with education as 

a result.  Attitudes to school are better, as is behaviour.  This has knock-on 

consequences for other more academic subjects, and the existence of a 

Tudalen 23



NAHT Cymru 

Y Gymdeithas ar gyfer holl arweinwyr ysgol 

The Association for all School Leaders 

Cyfarwyddydd / Director: Anna Brychan 

NAHT Cymru, 9 Rhodfa Columbus Walk, Maes Brigantîn / 

 Brigantine Place, Caerdydd / Cardiff CF10 4BY 

T: 029 2048 4546   E: annab@naht.org.uk   W: www.naht.org.uk 

 

3 

vocational curriculum is probably responsible for improving outcomes in 

subjects like English and Maths, because students feel part of the school and 

are experiencing success in the school environment. 

 

Impact on other subjects – there has undoubtedly been an impact on the more 

traditional teaching subjects.  After all, in an options system, there are only so 

many learners to share around.  By having a dramatic expansion in the number 

of subjects on offer, it guarantees that there will be a shift of student 

population so that some subjects are no longer viable at reasonable cost.  

Different subjects will be affected in different schools, depending on popularity 

and local culture.   Languages and second language Welsh may be particularly 

vulnerable, but equally it might be humanities, or separate sciences:  there 

should be data collected on this issue in a systematic manner. 

 

Small schools suffer particularly in this respect.  If you only have 60 learners in 

a yeargroup (i.e. a school of around 400 if it also has sixth form provision), 

then to offer thirty subjects across four option choices suggests an average 

group size of eight.  Clearly, that would not be sustainable and so the only way 

to proceed is to axe courses which do not recruit in sufficient numbers.  

Therefore there is the illusion of increased choice but the reality of restricted 

options.  As the Learning and Skills measure is fully implemented, the 

regulation about not re-offering a subject that has failed to recruit for two 

years will have interesting consequences for these schools, who presumably will 

be forbidden from offering, say, French or Geography.  This seems to be very 

much an unintended consequence! 

 

Benefits – collaborative working between institutions has worked well in some 

federations post-16, where federations have been able to rationalise expensive 

provision by concentrating it in one institution rather than duplicating across 

several.   It has also allowed federations to offer only provision of high quality 

by putting the curriculum offer into institutions where there are known 

strengths in delivery. 

 

Transport costs - This concentration of resource can be very cost-effective in 

urban settings, but the argument is weaker in rural areas where the cost of 

transporting pupils can exceed the cost of employing a member of staff to 

deliver the course.  To date, many of the transport costs have been met from 

Tudalen 24



NAHT Cymru 

Y Gymdeithas ar gyfer holl arweinwyr ysgol 

The Association for all School Leaders 

Cyfarwyddydd / Director: Anna Brychan 

NAHT Cymru, 9 Rhodfa Columbus Walk, Maes Brigantîn / 

 Brigantine Place, Caerdydd / Cardiff CF10 4BY 

T: 029 2048 4546   E: annab@naht.org.uk   W: www.naht.org.uk 

 

4 

14-19 network funding.  When the costs fall on colleges and schools, there will 

need to be a recalculation of the viability of moving the student population, and 

it may be that existing partnerships are unable to function.  At this point, the 

future of the Measure becomes cloudy.  This is a time of shrinking budgets, so 

maintaining costly provision will be difficult for all partners. 

 

Welsh medium provision has improved in range, with some Welsh medium 

vocational courses established.   However, there are still limited opportunities 

here, with colleges not always able or willing to set up KS4 vocational provision 

entirely through the Welsh language.  Geographical boundaries of 14-19 

networks do not necessarily coincide with the distribution of Welsh medium 

providers, which can lead to blurring of roles. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 25


	Agenda
	2 Gweithredu Mesur Dysgu a Sgiliau (Cymru) 2009: Sesiwn dystiolaeth
	3 Gweithredu Mesur Dysgu a Sgiliau (Cymru) 2009: Sesiwn dystiolaeth
	CYP(4)-08-11 Papur 3 - Tystiolaeth gan NAHT Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)


